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The old Eclipse Woolen Mill, which now houses the American Builders Supply Company, is
located on Chestnut Street, east of downtown Louisville, in the Phoenix Hill neighborhood.
The area derives its name from the old Phoenix Hill Brewery and Park, which no longer
exists. The neighborhood, with modest nineteenth and early twentieth century residences
and some commercial buildings, has been in decline for years but is now undergoing some
revitalization. Several blocks west of the mill is The Cloister, formerly an Ursuline
convent and girls'academy (c. 1867-1900) which has been adapted for use as a complex

of shops, offices, and restaurants. (The Cloister was placed on the National Register

of Historic Places in June, 1978.)

The mill, built in 1867-68, is a two-story structure of brick laid in common bond. It is
a rectangular building, measuring 55 by 170 feetyand the exterior walls are 13 inches
thick. A five-story tower is placed off-center at the front of the building. The upper
three stories of the tower were a later addition, built to house an immense water barrel
for a sprinkler system. (Photo 1)

Windows are recessed between brick pilasters which form segmental arches above the second
‘story windows. The original windows. were single-hung, 16 over 16 panes. Window sills are
.of limestone. . The window openings have segmental arches of radiating bricks which repeat
.the arch formed by the pilasters. (Photo 2)

The tower has pilasters at the corners and contains the main entrance which is recessed.
There are windows on each side of the tower at every story. On the fifth story three
‘narrow, round-arched windows have bold, multiple arches of radiating bricks. The top of
"the tower has varied brick corbeling and dentils which are somewhat obscured by white
‘paint and painted lettering. (Photo 1)

‘Brick corbeling and dentils finish the upper portion of the building's-walls. There is
no roof cornice, but there are interesting iron gutter supports. (Photo 2)

A wrought-iron fence with limestone gateposts separates the building from the sidewalk.
‘It is not known when the fence was erected. (Photo 3)

Major alterations to adapt the building to its current use included removing existing
floors to form an atrium, exposing the original poplar roof trusses (Photo 4) and
building a new customer service entrance which repeats the arched motif above the
windows. (Photo 5)

The structure is a handsome example of nineteenth-century industrial architecture, imagi-
natively adapted for todays uses.
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The Eclipse Woolen Mill is a handsome example of mid-nineteenth century industrial
architecture, and it is one of the few surviving mill structures in the city. Part of the
building is the work of one of the city's leading architectural firms. In addition, the
building has been imaginatively adapted for use as offices, thus maintaining it as viable
part of the community.

The Eclipse Woolen Mill was established and the mill built in 1867. The owners were
Ebenezer Bustard and Sylvester Brownell, who had formed their partnership under the name
of Bustard and Brownell in 1867,

In March, 1867 they purchased five tracts of land bounded by Garden Street .(now Chestnut),
the Louisville-and Bardstown Turnpike (now Baxter Avenue), and Beargrass Creek. The
property had a frontage of about 200 feet on Garden Street. They paid a total of $6440

for the five tracts. : '

The city directory fér 1867-68 listed, for the first time, the Eclipse Woolen Mill on the
east side of Garden Street and the firm of Bustard and Brownell was listed as proprietor
of the mill. This listing‘would indicate a construction date of 1867 for the mill.

This date is further corroborated by existing tax records for that period. The city tax
Assessment Books have no listing for Bustard and Brownell in 1867, but in 1868 the tax
records list the firm's property on Garden Street with taxable improvements valued at
$20,000.

Little is known about the two men who founded and built the Eclipse Woolen Mill. Ebenezer
Bustard - was the nephew of John Bustard, a prominent and wealthy Louisville merchant

in the early years of the nineteenth century. Ebenezer Bustard was an heir toa considerable
portion of his uncle's estate, as well as that of his aunt, John Bustard's sister. He was
listed in the city directories as early as 1841 and was later listed as a partner in Bustard

and Orr, wholesale grocers and commission merchants. In 1868 Ebenezer Bustard was
listed as one of eight persons in Louisville with incomes of over $20, 000.

(continued)
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In 1871 Bustard and Brownell sold the Eclipse Woolen Mill to William H. and Warren N.
Hederson, but Brownell continued as a partner in the firm, afterward listed as Henderson
and Brownell. Bustard died several months after the sale.

In 1873, Silas F. Miller, 4 former- riverboat captain and owner of a packet line, purchased
a half-interest in the woolen mill, In 1874, Henry W. Barret acquired an interest in the
firm and he, Brownell, and Miller were associated for several years, By 1877 the firm
was known as Henry W. Barret and Company, proprietor of the Eclipse Woolen Mill.
During the Barret and Miller ownership, the mill prospered and several additions were
made to the original building.

Louisville was one of the largest wool markets in the country.in the nineteenth century.
In 1876 there were three large mills manufacturing "Kentucky jeans,' fabrici which was
sold in New Orleans, New York, St, Louis, and San Francisco, according to a business
report of that year. The @®clipse Woolen Mill was one of those three.

An 188l publication described the Eclipse Woolen Mill's growth from..a capacity of 84 looms
in 1874 to 180 looms in 188l. The mill then employed 175 persons and had a payroll of
$800 to $1000 per week. It was capable of producing one million yards of fabric per year.

In 1902 Silas Miller died, Henry Barret retired from active business, and the mill was
sold toD. A, and John Chenoweth, who operated it for several years. With the decline
of the woolen industry, the mill eventually closed and the building was used at various
times as a chair factory, carpenter shop, blacksmith shop, and a stable for mules.

The Henry Bickel Company, a construction company, acquired the property in 1913. The
American Builders Supply Company, a subsidiary of the Bickel Company founded in 1925,
used the mill until early 1977 as a warehouse for building materials. In late 1977 after
renovation and remodeling, the company moved its offices into the building.

The architect of the mill is unknown. The firm of D.X, Murphy and Brothers, successor
to the architectural practice of Henry Whitestone, made additions and alterations to the
building in 1884, 1887, and 1895. Plans for these alterations exist and are in the Manu-
script Collection of the Filson Club. It is possible that Whitestone :was the architect of
the mill in 1867, Stylistically it is similar to other work by Whitestone and the fact that

(continued)
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his successor was working on the mill as early as 1884 could indicate that Whitestone
designed the original building. However, there is no conclusive evidence for definitely
attributing the mill to Henry Whitestone.

Most of the additions were frame and iron clad rooms at the rear of ithe mill whi ¢h: housed
stock rooms, carding and spinning operations, dye rooms, etc. These additions no longer
exist.

A major alteration increased the tower from two stories to five stories in height. The
1892 Sanborn Maps of the City of Louisville indicated that the tower had only two stories.
(map 1) The Murphy plans include an elevation of the tower with two stories and an eleva-
tion of the tower with five stories, showing construction information and dated 1895. The
1905 Sanborn Maps show the tower as having five stories.

The brick work on the tower, especially the corbeling near the top, resembles other work
done by the Murphy firm. Such corbeling appears on the old Jefferson County Jail (1905),
designed by the Murphy firm. D.X. Murphy (1854-1933) was a native of Louisville who
entered the architectural firm of Henry Whitestone (1819-1893) and became his successor
when Whitestone retired in the 1880s. The Murphy firm, with two of Murphy's brothers as
partners, was an outstanding architectural firm in the late nineteenth century and early
twentieth centuries. Their work included the Churchill Downs grandstand (1894), the
German Bank (1913), the City Hospital (1911), St. Boniface Church and rectory (1893) and
numerous other buildings, churches, and residences.
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Sanborn-Perris Map Company
New York, New York

Sanborn map showing Eclipse
Woolen Mill with two-story
tower, 1892.
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Eclipse Woolen Mill
Louisville, Jefferson

County, Kentucky,

DEC 2 2 1999
Sanborn Map Company
Mapﬁ’

Map gxowing present site of
mill building.
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